

TENNESSEE ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE COMMISSION MINUTES THURSDAY, MARCH 2, 2017

1:30 p.m.

Commissioner Kaegi and Acting Chairman Jones were present at the March 2, 2017 Commission meeting. Acting Chairman Jones noted that the February meeting was moved to March 2, 2017 in order to allow both sitting Commissioners to attend. Commissioner Jones noted the resignation of former Chairperson Mary McDaniel and expressed gratitude for her service.

Clayton Byrd, Director, Zack Blair, Assistant Director, Commission Counsel, Joshua Stepp, Commission Counsel, Keith Hollingshead-Cook, Bond Tubbs, CLEO, and Administrative Services Director, Zachary Pounds were in attendance on behalf of TABC staff.

1. REVIEW/APPROVAL OF THE JANUARY 24, 2017 COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES -

Discussion/Action Taken: Commissioner Kaegi motioned for approve the January minutes. Commissioner Jones seconded the motion; the motion passed with two ayes.

2. RETAIL MATTERS

- A. OLD BUSINESS none
- **B. NEW BUSINESS**
 - 1. RIMEL'S LIQUOR BEER WINE & TOBACCO STORE NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE (DAVIDSON COUNTY)

Applicant:

R&M Ventures, LLC

Member(s):

Rick Arthur Staley, 50 %

Melessia Sircy Staley, 50 %

The applicant was conditionally approved for licensing¹ at the October 25, 2016 Commission meeting.² Due to construction delays, the applicant requested and received an initial thirty day extension period from TABC staff and applicant is now before the Commission to request a final thirty day extension, which must come before the full Commission. If approved, this final extension period would run through Friday, March 24, 2017. The TABC staff recommends approval of this extension request.

Discussion/Action Taken: Director Byrd reviewed the matter to the Commission and noted that there have been several construction delays. Commissioner Kaegi motioned for approval and Commissioner Jones seconded the motion. The motion for approve passed with two ayes. Update: License no. 4134 issued 3/24/2017

2. STAR LIQUOR (LICENSE NO. 4106) SELMER, TENNESSEE (MCNAIRY COUNTY)

Applicant: Star Liquor, LLC

Member(s):

Pre-Approval	(%)	Post-Approval	(%)
Yesha Y. Patel	100	Yesha Y. Patel	40
		Shilpaben P. Patel	30
		Chhaya K. Patel	30

Before the Commission is a request for approval of a change in members and membership interest in the LLC licensee doing business at 780 Mulberry Avenue, Selmer, TN 38375. Current LLC member, Yesha Patel, intends to sell 60% of her ownership interest to Shilpaben Patel (30%) and Chhaya Patel (30%). The TABC staff recommends conditional approval of this request, subject to completion of the following item(s):

a. TABC agent report

¹ Applicant received conditional approval, subject to receipt of the following items: TABC inspection, Acknowledgment of TABC Rules & Regulations, certificate of occupancy, and the license fee.

² The applicant also received conditional approval by the Commission on May 24, 2016, and was then granted two extension periods of thirty days each; however, due to construction delays the license was never issued and the applicant re-applied, and the matter was listed on the October 25, 2016 Commission agenda.

Discussion/Action Taken: Director Byrd reviewed the matter to the Commission and recommended conditional approval. Commissioner Kaegi motioned for conditional approval upon completion of listed item. Commissioner Jones seconded the motion; it passed with two ayes. Update: databse updated

3. WINERY MATTERS

A. OLD BUSINESS - none

B. NEW BUSINESS

1... THE WINERY AT SEVEN SPRINGS FARM **MAYNARDVILLE, TENNESSEE (UNION COUNTY)**

Applicant:

The Winery at Seven Springs Farm, LLC

Member(s): Nicole Leigh Riddle, 60%

Donna Knox Riddle, 20%

Michael Daniel Coombs, 20%

Current licensee: James Riddle d/b/a The Winery at Seven Springs

Farm (W-96)

Proposed licensee: The Winery at Seven Springs Farm, LLC d/b/a The

Winery at Seven Springs Farm

Applicant is requesting Commission approval for a complete change in ownership of the winery located at 1474 Highway 61, East, Maynardville, TN 37807. The LLC will lease the real property from James Riddle & Donna Riddle. The TABC staff recommends conditional approval of this request, subject to receipt of the following item(s):

- a. TABC agent report
- b. TABC inspection
- c. acknowledgment of TABC Rules & Regulations

Discussion/Action Taken: Director Byrd reviewed the matter to the Commission and recommended conditional approval subject to receipt of the listed items. Commissioner Kaegi motioned for conditional approval upon receipt of listed items. Commissioner Jones seconded the motion and it passed with two ayes. Update: license W-108 issued 3/14/2017

4. FARM WINERY MATTERS - none

5. WHOLESALE MATTERS

- A. OLD BUSINESS none
- **B. NEW BUSINESS**

1. LIPMAN BROTHERS, LLC (license no. 1) NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE (DAVIDSON COUNTY)

Applicant:

Lipman Brothers, LLC

Member(s):

RSL Holdings, Inc., 100%

Robert S. Lipman, President/CEO

Shareholders of RSL Holdings, Inc.	Before(%)	After(%)
Robert S. Lipman	55.0	51.0
Robert S. Lipman Irrevocable Trust f/b/o ³	22.5	24.5
Robert S. Lipman Irrevocable Trust f/b/o ⁴	22.5	24.5

The wholesale licensee doing business at 411 Great Circle Rd., Nashville, Tennessee 37228, is requesting approval of changes in shareholder interest in RSL Holdings, Inc. as specified above. The transfer occurred prior to Commission approval. The TABC staff recommends approval of this request.

Discussion/Action Taken: Director Byrd reviewed the matter to the Commission and recommended approval of the request. Director Byrd noted this would be a shift in ownership interests of the existing shareholders and that there were no new members. Hank Hildebrand noted that the changes were in the parent company of the licensee, RSL Holdings Inc.

Commissioner Kaegi motioned for approval and Commissioner Jones seconded the motion. The motion for approval passed with two ayes. Update: database updated

LIPMAN BROTHERS, LLC (license no. 79) KNOXVILLE, TENNESSEE (KNOX COUNTY)

Applicant:

Lipman Brothers, LLC

³ Robert S. Lipman Irrevocable Trust f/b/o Gracie Lipman Donahue

⁴ Robert S. Lipman Irrevocable Trust f/b/o Margaret Lipman Orthwein

Member(s):

RSL Holdings, Inc., 100%

Robert S. Lipman, President/CEO

Shareholders of RSL Holdings, Inc.	Before(%)	After(%)
Robert S. Lipman	55.0	51.0
Robert S. Lipman Irrevocable Trust f/b/o ⁵	22.5	24.5
Robert S. Lipman Irrevocable Trust f/b/o ⁶	22.5	24.5

The wholesale licensee doing business at 1487 Amherst Rd., Ste. B, Knoxville, Tennessee 37909, is requesting approval of changes in shareholder interest in RSL Holdings, Inc. as specified above. The transfer occurred prior to Commission approval. The TABC staff recommends approval of this request.

Discussion/Action Taken: Director Byrd reviewed the matter to the Commission. Commissioner Kaegi motioned for approval and Commissioner Jones seconded the motion. The motion for approval passed with two ayes. Update: database updated

3. SOUTHERN GLAZER'S OF TENNESSEE (license no. 34) MEMPHIS, TENNESSEE (SHELBY COUNTY)

Applicant:

Southern Glazer's Wine and Spirits of Tennessee, LLC

Member(s):

SGTN Holdings, LLC,⁷ 51%

Spritzer Holdings Company, 47%

David Benson, LLC, 1%

PFICO, LLC, 1%

Glazer Inc. interests which have changed	Before	After
Barbara Glazer Rosenblatt	0.251%	0.640%
AGR 2012 GST Trust	2.301%	2.220%
MGR 2012 GST Trust	2.301%	2.220%
G&S Irrevocable Trust	2.674%	2.581%
MSGSEP, LLC	3.125%	4.321%
Bennett J. Glazer	7.366%	7.645%
Ann B. Glazer Revocable Trust	1.556%	1.900%
Glazer Community Property Trust	0.681%	0.733%
Betty Glazer Silverman	7.366%	7.646%
Robert L. Glazer Marital Non-Exempt Trust	7.021%	7.313%
Francis Glazer Marital Trust	2.891%	2.925%

⁵ Robert S. Lipman Irrevocable Trust f/b/o Gracie Lipman Donahue

⁶ Robert S. Lipman Irrevocable Trust f/b/o Margaret Lipman Orthwein

⁷ SGTN Holdings, LLC is owned by Southern Glazers Wine & Spirits, LLC. Southern Glazers Wine & Spirits, LLC has two members: Glazer's Inc. and SWS Holdings Inc.

The wholesale licensee doing business at 6290 Shelby View, Memphis, TN 38134, is requesting approval of the above listed changes in shareholder interest in Glazer Inc.,⁸ the great-grandparent entity of the TABC licensed entity. The changes occurred prior to Commission approval. The TABC staff recommends approval of this request.

Discussion/Action Taken: Director Byrd reviewed the matter to the Commission. Attorney, Hank Hildebrand noted the changes were in the great-grandparent entity of the licensee and Mr. Hildebrand presented the Commissioners a chart of the ownership structure. Commissioner Kaegi motioned for approval and Commissioner Jones seconded the motion. The motion for approval passed with two ayes.

6. DISTILLERY/BREWERY

- A. OLD BUSINESS none
- **B. NEW BUSINESS**
 - 1. COSBY CREEK
 NEWPORT, TENNESSEE (COCKE COUNTY)

Applicant:

Bunch Distillery, LLC

Member(s):

Mark Bunch, 50%

Anthony Bunch, 50%

Before the Commission is a request for licensing of a new distillery to be located at 121 Cosby Highway, Newport, Tennessee 37821. The LLC will lease the premises from landlord, Mark Bunch and Anthony Bunch. The TABC staff recommends conditional approval of this request, subject to receipt of the following item(s):

- a. TABC-agent-report (received)
- b. TABC inspection
- c. acknowledgement of TABC Rules & Regulations
- d. license fee

Discussion/Action Taken: Director Byrd reviewed the matter to the Commission and recommended conditional approval subject to receiving the inspection, acknowledgment of rules and regulations and the license fee.

⁸ Glazer's Inc. is owned by fifty-one separate entities.

Commissioner Jones motioned to approve and Commission Kaegi seconded the motion. The motion passed with two ayes. Update: license no. 162 issued 3/16/2017

2. SAZERAC OF TENNESSEE, LLC NEWPORT, TENNESSEE (COCKE COUNTY)

Applicant: Sazerac of Tennessee, LLC Member(s): Sazerac Distillers, LLC, 100%

Current licensee: Popcorn Sutton Distilling, LLC¹⁰ Proposed licensee: Sazerac of Tennessee, LLC

Applicant is requesting approval for a complete change of ownership of the distillery located at 830 Highway 25-70, Newport, Tennessee 37821. The purchase of the distillery occurred prior to approval. Applicant is leasing the premises from landlord, Tennessee Tobacco Sales Inc., and the <u>TABC staff</u> recommends conditional approval of this request, subject to the following:

- a. citation resolved
- b. TABC inspection
- c. acknowledgment of TABC Rules & Regulations
- d. license fee

Discussion/Action Taken: Director Byrd reviewed the matter to the Commission and noted that staff discovered the change in ownership during a routine renewal and found that Popcorn Sutton Distilling was being operated as a different entity and a \$1500 citation was issued. Director Byrd recommended conditional approval subject to the resolution of the citation, inspection, acknowledgment of rules and regulations and the license fee. Commissioner Kaegi inquired about resolution of the citation Rob Pinson informed the Commission that the check for the citation should have been delivered. Commissioner Kaegi motioned for conditional approval upon receipt of listed items and Commissioner Jones seconded the motion; the motion was passed with two ayes. Update: license no. 163 issued 3/16/17

3. TENNESSEE LEGEND SEVIERVILLE, TENNESSEE (SEVIER COUNTY)

⁹ Sazerac Distillers, LLC is owned by Sazerac Company Inc. The shareholders of Sazerac Company Inc. are William Goldring (50.10%), William Goldring Descenant's Trust (5.42%), Diane G. Franco (15.49%), Jeffrey B. Goldring (19.69%), William Goldring 2015 Two Year Trust (3.57%) and William Goldring 2016 Two Year Trust (5.73%).

¹⁰ Popcorn Sutton Distilling, LLC: J&M Concepts, LLC (89.55%), Auspicious Systems, LLC (5.95%), Creative Artists Agency, LLC (2.50%), and TeeTot, LLC (2.00%)

Applicant: Cry

Crystal Falls Spirits, LLC¹¹

Member(s):

Jay Holeman, 100%

Applicant is requesting Commission approval for licensing at 870 Winfield Dunn Parkway, Ste. 1 and 2, Sevierville, Tennessee 37876. Applicant is leasing the real property from Holeman Properties, LLC¹² and the TABC staff recommends conditional approval of this request, subject to receipt of the following:

- a. TABC agent report
- b. TABC inspection
- c. acknowledgment of TABC rules & regulations
- d. license fee

Discussion/Action Taken: Director Byrd reviewed the matter to the Commission and recommended conditional approval subject to receipt of the agent report, inspection report, acknowledgement of rules and regulations and the license fee. Commissioner Kaegi moved for conditional approval upon receipt of listed items. Commissioner Jones seconded the motion and it passed with two ayes. Update: license no. 161 issued 3/14/2017

7. PRIVATE CLUBS - none

8. RETAIL FOOD STORES

- A. UPDATE APPLICATIONS RECEIVED Discussion/Action Taken: Director Byrd noted the following: 46 retail food store applications received since last meeting and 32 of those were received the day before the meeting. Approx. 18 licenses were issued in the past month. Directory Byrd noted that Dollar General had expressed intent to apply for retail food store license.
- B. SEE THE LIST OF TABC LICENSED RETAIL FOOD STORES BEGINNING ON PAGE 8.
- 9. INITIAL ORDERS TO BE REVIEWED BY THE COMMISSION none

SERVER APPEALS - none

¹¹ Crystal Falls Spirits, LLC (d/b/a Tennessee Legend) already holds a TABC distillery license (license no. 124) at 2874 Newport Hwy, Sevierville, Tennessee 37876.

¹² Holeman Properties, LLC is sub-subleasing the premises from Pigeon River Land Company, a Tennessee general partnership.

11. MISC -

A. TABC EMAIL DISTRIBUTION LIST SIGN-UP. PLEASE VISIT THE BELOW WEB ADDRESS TO SIGN UP TO RECEIVE EMAIL NOTIFICATIONS FROM THE TABC: https://www.tn.gov/abc/topic/email-us

Discussion/Action Taken: Director Byrd noted that there were about 1300 subscribers.

B. RULES

1. A rulemaking hearing is scheduled for March 14, 2017 at 1:00 pm. The notice of rulemaking filings can be viewed at the following web address:

http://tnsos.org/rules/RulemakingHearings.php?resultpage=2&sort=AgencyName&direction=asc

Red-line versions of the above rules/revisions can be found on the TABC website: http://www.tn.gov/abc/section/public-information-and-forms

Discussion/Action Taken: Director Byrd introduced the matter to the Commission and Commission Counsel Joshua Stepp addressed the Commission on this item. Attorney Stepp provided an overview of the hearing structure. He noted that there was a rulemaking hearing scheduled on March 14, 2017 at 1:00 pm. Mr. Stepp noted that the hearing was an opportunity to accept comments from the general public and later written responses would be included in the final rulemaking proposals prior to going to the Attorney General's office for review. Mr. Stepp noted that written comments would be accepted.

Kurt Winstead, audience member, commented that staff had been responsive during the process and noted his appreciation for staff's efforts.

2. Petition from Metro Nashville Airport Authority – see the petition for rules attached to the end of the agenda

Discussion/Action Taken: Commission Counsel Stepp addressed the Commission on this item. Mr. Stepp noted that the

petition was being made regarding the hours of sale and noted that hours of sale for liquor by the drink is set out by statute and that the statute authorized the Commission to modify the hours by rule. Mr. Stepp noted this had been done before regarding Sunday sales to allow for the start time to be 10 a.m. instead of noon. Mr. Stepp noted the rulemaking petition also concerned other issues dealing with the airport and how the licenses are structured. Mr. Stepp noted that the staff was in front of the Commission to notify the Commission and if the commission was ok with moving forward staff would review the petition and would file for a rulemaking hearing to start that process. Attorney Will Cheek was present on behalf of the Petitioner.

There was no objection from the Commission to the staff moving forward with the rulemaking hearing process.

C. OWNERSHIP CHANGES PRIOR TO COMMISSION APPROVAL

- 1. Discussion
- 2. Comments from audience

Discussion/Action Taken: Assistant Director Blair addressed the Commission on this item and proposed a potential delegation of authority to staff for certain types of ownership changes – in situations where the change does not reflect a change of party of ownership. Mr. Blair noted that citations have been issued for changes occurring prior to approval. Director Byrd noted that staff had been approached several times about the equity of that practice. A discussion was held and Attorney Hank Hildebrand addressed the Commission on the issue, suggesting that the Commission consider a rule or policy similar to the TTB that would require the licensees to disclose to the ABC, but not appear before the commission for approval or pay the fee to apply for the change, in situations where there is no change in management or control, and there are no new people involved.

No action was taken at the meeting. Staff will bring this matter back before the Commission once a new member is appointed to the Commission.

D. CONSIDERATION OF DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY TO DIRECTOR TO RESOLVE PENDING LITIGATION AND RATIFICATION OF PRIOR STAFF ACTION

Discussion/Action Taken: Commissioner Kaegi moved that the Commission delegate to the Executive Director the authority to respond, defend, direct

the course, and to settle and currently pending litigation or administrative proceeding on behalf on the ABC. Commissioner Jones seconded the motion. There was no discussion. The motion passed with two ayes.

Commissioner Kaegi moved that the Commission ratify and approve the prior resolution of the administrative complaint filed by former Special Agent Greg Beck. Commissioner Jones seconded the motion. There was no discussion. The motion was approved with two ayes.

12. BUDGET – Update

Discussion/Action Taken: Assistant Director Blair provided an update on this item and noted the following:

- FY2016 actual appropriations \$7.3 million
- FY2017 estimated \$8.24 million; growth driven by WIGs legislation and the new positions that were brought on as a result
- FY2018 recommended appropriation is \$8.69 million
- TABC budget made up of other revenue
- Requested two cost increases represent ~\$446k in recommended increase
 - four positions (executive adm. assistant, attorney position to clear overlap, Director of Training, and Director of Risk Management)
 - law enforcement training requested ~\$130k for law enforcement training
- if the budget is approved, change in authorized positions would go from 88 to 92
- **13. NEXT MEETING** Tuesday, March 28, 2017 at 1:30 p.m. in Nashville, Tennessee

14. UPCOMING MEETINGS -

- Tuesday, March 28, 2017 at 1:30 p.m.
- Tuesday, April 25, 2017 at 1:30 p.m.
- Tuesday, May 23, 2017 (Tentative) at 1:30 p.m.

^{*}list to follow

^{*}attachment to follow

Below is the cumulative list of TABC licensed retail food stores. This list includes 629 retail food stores and is current through the morning of February 24, 2017. The January agenda listed 612 retail food stores.

*new additions to the list

Retail_Name	ADDRESS	City_St
ALDI 13	836 LOUISVILLE ROAD	ALCOA, TN 37701
FOOD CITY 626	121 NORTH HALL RD.	ALCOA, TN 37701
KENJO MARKET 7	3012 AIRPORT HWY	ALCOA, TN 37701
KROGER 862	244 S. HALLS RD.	ALCOA, TN 37701
WALMART 672	1030 HUNTERS CROSSING	ALCOA, TN 37701
FOOD LION 861	536 RICHARDS RD.	ANTIOCH, TN 37013
KROGER 520	5319 MOUNT VIEW RD.	ANTIOCH, TN 37013
PUBLIX 1235	3532 MURFREESBORO PIKE	ANTIOCH, TN 37013
WALMART 5058	3035 HAMILTON CHURCH RD.	ANTIOCH, TN 37013
KROGER 463	11635 HWY 70	ARLINGTON, TN 38002
FOOD LION 693	314 FREY ST.	ASHLAND CITY, TN 37015
WALMART 1226	1626 HIGHWAY 12 S	ASHLAND CITY, TN 37015
INGLES 88	917 DECATUR PIKE	ATHENS, TN 37303
PRICE LESS IGA 43	1312 DECATUR PIKE	ATHENS, TN 37303
WALMART 663	1815 DECATUR PIKE	ATHENS, TN 37303
KROGER 433	11630 HWY 51 S.	ATOKA, TN 38004
SAM'S CLUB 6260	8480 HWY. 64	BARTLETT, TN 38133
KROGER 456	7615 HWY 70	BARTLETT, TN 38133
WALMART 950	8400 HIGHWAY 64	BARTLETT, TN 38133
ALDI 66	2867 KIRBY WHITTEN RD.	BARTLETT, TN 38134
KROGER 405	5995 STAGE RD.	BARTLETT, TN 38134
KROGER 489	2942 KIRBY WHITTEN RD.	BARTLETT, TN 38134
WALMART 3599	6520 MEMPHIS ARLINGTON RD.	BARTLETT, TN 38135
KROGER 527	7087 HWY. 70 S.	BELLEVUE, TN 37221
FOOD CITY 669	1921 HIGHWAY 394	BLOUNTVILLE, TN 37617
WALMART 466	1604 W MARKET ST.	BOLIVAR, TN 38008
PUBLIX 1057	10638 CONCORD RD.	BRENTWOOD, TN 37027
CONCORD GENERAL STORE	1101 WILSON PIKE	BRENTWOOD, TN 37027
COSTCO 386	98 SEABOARD LN	BRENTWOOD, TN 37027
FRESH MARKET 58	235 FRANKLIN RD.	BRENTWOOD, TN 37027

KROGER 589	6690 NOLENSVILLE PIKE	BRENTWOOD, TN 37027
KROGER 596	210 FRANKLIN RD., SUITE 100	BRENTWOOD, TN 37027
PUBLIX 1021	101 CREEKSIDE CROSSING	BRENTWOOD, TN 37027
PUBLIX 142	8105 MOORES LANE	BRENTWOOD, TN 37027
FOOD CITY 617	1430 VOLUNTEER PARKWAY	BRISTOL, TN 37620
FOOD CITY 622	1317 VIRGINIA AVE.	BRISTOL, TN 37620
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 183	400 VOLUNTEER PARKWAY	BRISTOL, TN 37620
WALMART 620	220 CENTURY BLVD.	BRISTOL, TN 37620
FOOD GIANT 20	352 WEST MAIN ST,	BROWNSVILLE, TN 38012
WALMART 64	1100 S DUPREE AVE.	BROWNSVILLE, TN 38012
TIGER MART 111	8374 OLD BROWNSVILLE	BRUNSWICK, TN 38014
WALMART 738	2200 HIGHWAY 641 N.	CAMDEN, TN 38320
EARTH FARE 425	5414 HIXSON PIKE	CHATTANOOGA, TN 37343
FOOD CITY 705	1600 EAST 23RD ST.	CHATTANOOGA, TN 37403_
KANKUS 5	702 CENTRAL AVE.	CHATTANOOGA, TN 37403
FOOD CITY 715	703 SIGNAL MOUNTAIN RD.	CHATTANOOGA, TN 37405
PUBLIX 1460	400 NORTH MARKET ST.	CHATTANOOGA, TN 37405
WALMART 3659	501 SIGNAL MOUNTAIN RD.	CHATTANOOGA, TN 37405
WHOLE FOODS 6	301 MANUFACTURER'S RD.	CHATTANOOGA, TN 37405
FOOD CITY 716	3801 TENNESSEE AVE.	CHATTANOOGA, TN 37409
FOOD CITY 759	4011 BRAINERD RD.	CHATTANOOGA, TN 37411
WALMART 4671	4110 SHALLOWFORD RD.	CHATTANOOGA, TN 37411
WALMART 5251	490 GREENWAY VIEW DR.	CHATTANOOGA, TN 37411
FOOD CITY 726	3600 HIXSON PIKE	CHATTANOOGA, TN 37415
WALMART 3619	3901 HIXSON PIKE, SUITE 181	CHATTANOOGA, TN 37415
FOOD CITY 706	4510 HIGHWAY 58	CHATTANOOGA, TN 37416
WALMART 3660	3550 CUMMINGS WAY	CHATTANOOGA, TN 37419
ALDI 91	5706 LEE HIGHWAY	CHATTANOOGA, TN 37421
EARTH FARE 420	1814 GUNBARRELL RD. SUITE 100	CHATTANOOGA, TN 37421
FOOD CITY 701	7804 EAST BRAINERD RD.	CHATTANOOGA, TN 37421
FOOD CITY 735	6951 LEE HIGHWAY	CHATTANOOGA, TN 37421
FRESH MARKET 22	2288 GUNBARREL RD.	CHATTANOOGA, TN 37421
PUBLIX 1165	8644 EAST BRAINERED RD.	CHATTANOOGA, TN 37421
SAM'S CLUB 8112	6101 LEE HIGHWAY	CHATTANOOGA, TN 37421
WALMART 1469	2020 GUNBARREL RD. SUITE 250	CHATTANOOGA, TN 37421

WALMART 5143	8101 EAST BRAINERD RD.	CHATTANOOGA, TN 37421
FOOD CITY 603	731 HWY 11 W.	CHURCH HILL, TN 37642
FOOD LION 1497	701 HIGHWAY 11 WEST	CHURCH HILL, TN 37642
KENJO MARKET 14	101 SILVER LAKE RD.	CHURCH HILL, TN 37642
KROGER 540	2100 LOWES DR.	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37040
QUICK STOP FOOD MART	531 N. SECOND ST.	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37040
SAM'S CLUB 6512	3315 GUTHRIE HWY	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37040
THE SILVER DOLLAR	2700 TRENTON RD.	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37040
WALMART 4469	2551 WHITFIELD RD.	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37040
MALMART 672	3050 WILMA RUDOLPH	CLADICSVILLE TNL 27040
WALMART 673	BLVD.	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37040
FOOD LION 874	2304 MADISON ST. 1628A FORT CAMPBELL	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37041
ALDI 20	BLVD.	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37042
KROGER 544	1489 MADISON ST.	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37042
PRICE LESS IGA 494	1151 FORT CAMP BELL BLVD.	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37042
PUBLIX 1425	1490 TINY TOWN RD.	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37042
WALMART 1075	1680 FORT CAMPBELL BLVD.	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37042
WALMART 4589	216 DOVER RD.	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37042
WALMART 4591	408 TINY TOWN RD.	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37042
PUBLIX 1392	1771 MADISON ST.	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37043
WALMART 3495	2315 MADISON ST.	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37043
KROGER 582	110 DOVER CROSSING RD.	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37072
WALMART 698	4495 KEITH ST NW	CLEVELAND, TN 37312
WALMART 5263	2300 TREASURY DR. SE	CLEVELAND, TN 37323
ALDI 89	315 PAUL HUFF PARKWAY	CLEVELAND, TN 37312
COOKE'S 5417	3400 KEITH ST.	CLEVELAND, TN 37312
FOOD CITY 712	255 OCOEE CROSSING NW	CLEVELAND, TN 37312
FOOD LION 941	125 STUART RD.	CLEVELAND, TN 37312
PUBLIX 1356	635 PAUL HUFF PARKWAY NW	CLEVELAND, TN 37312
FRESH N' LOW 3870	3870 CANDIES CREEK LN. NW	CLEVELAND, TN 37313
FOOD CITY 743	2310 MCGRADY DR.	CLEVELAND, TN 37323
FOOD CITY 654	507 S. CHARLES SEIVERS BLVD.	CLINTON, TN 37716
GIT N GO MARKET 1	1106 N. CHARLES G SEIVERS BLVD.	CLINTON, TN 37716
GIT N GO MARKET 2	501 S. CHARLES G SEIVERS BLVD.	CLINTON, TN 37716
GIT N GO MARKET 3	630 CLINCH AVE	CLINTON, TN 37716
GIT N GO MARKET 4	2254 N. CHARLES G	CLINTON, TN 37716

		SEIVERS BLVD.	
	INGLES 9	190 CLINCH AVE.	CLINTON, TN 37716
	WALMART 4635	150 TANNER LN.	CLINTON, TN 37716
	ALDI 74	523 W. POPLAR AVE.	COLLIERVILLE, TN 38017
	KROGER 387	240 NEW BYHALIA RD.	COLLIERVILLE, TN 38017
	KROGER 481	3685 HOUSTON LEVEE RD.	COLLIERVILLE, TN 38017
	WALMART 175	560 W POPLAR AVE.	COLLIERVILLE, TN 38017
*	ALDI 40	311 S. JAMES CAMPBELL BLVD.	COLUMBIA, TN 38401
*	FOOD LION 801	5021 TROTWOOD AVE.	COLUMBIA, TN 38401
	KROGER 507	1202 S. JAMES CAMPBEL BLVD.	COLUMBIA, TN 38401
	WALMART 192	2200 BROOKMEADE DR.	COLUMBIA, TN 38401
	KROGER 538	845 NASHVILLE HWY.	COLUMBIA, TN 38701
	ALDI 26	442 S. JEFFERSON AVE.	COOKEVILLE, TN 38501
	FOOD LION 2149	377 WEST JACKSON ST.	COOKEVILLE, TN 38501
	FOOD LION 995	1245 EAST SPRING ST,	COOKEVILLE, TN 38501
	HOME TOWN IGA 42	1010 N.WASHINGTON AVE	COOKEVILLE, TN 38501
	KROGER 893	445 SOUTH JEFFERSON AVE.	COOKEVILLE, TN 38501
	WAI.MART 657	768 S. JEFFERSON AVE.	COOKEVILLE, TN 38501
	SAM'S CLUB 4930	1177 SAMS ST.	COOKEVILLE, TN 38506
	ALDI 64	1610 GERMANTOWN PARKWAY	CORDOVA, TN 38016
	COSTCO 352	2431 N. GERMANTOWN PKWY	CORDOVA, TN 38016
	KROGER 410	676 N. GERMANTOWN PKWY	CORDOVA, TN 38018
	KROGER 426	1675 N. GERMANTOWN PKWY	CORDOVA, TN 38018
	WALMART 2322	577 N. GERMANTOWN PARKWAY	CORDOVA, TN 38018
	IGA MIDWAY	7345 TAZEWELL PK	CORRYTON, TN 37721
	KROGER 418	951 HWY. 51 N.	COVINGTON, TN 38019
	NAIFEH'S CASH SAVER	738 HWY 51 N	COVINGTON, TN 38019
	WALMART 93	201 LANNY BRIDGES AVE.	COVINGTON, TN 38019
	FOOD CITY 656	1180 WEST AVE	CROSSVILLE, TN 38555
	KROGER 599	265 HIGHLAND SQUARE	CROSSVILLE, TN 38555
	PRICE LESS IGA 495	75 GENESIS SQUARE	CROSSVILLE, TN 38555
	WALMART 687	168 OBED PLZ, SUITE 108	CROSSVILLE, TN 38555
	FOOD CITY 662	141 TOWNE CENTRE DR.	CROSSVILLE, TN 38571
	SIMONTONS CHEESE HOUSE	2278 HWY 127 S.	CROSSVILLE, TN 38572

	FOOD CITY 630	123 WEST HIGHWAY 25- 70	DANDRIDGE, TN 37725
	FOOD CITY 724	420 MARKET ST.	DAYTON, TN 37321
	WALMART 619	3034 RHEA COUNTY HIGHWAY	DAYTON, TN 37321
	KROGER 503	1840 DECHERD BLVD	DECHERD, TN 37324
	ALDI 24	781 HIGHWAY 46 SOUTH	DICKSON, TN 37055
	FOOD LION 978	303 HENSLEE DR.	DICKSON, TN 37055
	KROGER 523	143 HENSLEE DR.	DICKSON, TN 37055
	WALMART 264	175 BEASLEY DR.	DICKSON, TN 37055
	WALMART 4226	16773 RANKIN AVE.	DUNLAP, TN 37327
	KROGER 392	2525 LAKE RD.	DYERSBURG, TN 38024
	WALMART 677	2650 LAKE RD.	DYERSBURG, TN 38024
	FOOD CITY 710	3715 RINGGOLD RD.	EAST RIDGE, TN 37412
	FOOD CITY 714	6723 RINGGOLD RD.	EAST RIDGE, TN 37412
	FOOD LION 634	4340 RINGGOLD RD.	EAST RIDGE, TN 37412
	WALMART 4692	4150 RINGGOLD RD.	EAST RIDGE, TN 37412
	ROADRUNNER MARKETS 141	416 HIGHWAY 91	ELIZABETHTON, TN 37601
	ROADRUNNER MARKETS 168	1258 MILLIGAN HIGHWAY	ELIZABETHTON, TN 37601
	FOOD CITY 631	920 BROAD ST.	ELIZABETHTON, TN 37643
	INGLES 397	768 W. ELK AVE.	ELIZABETHTON, TN 37643
	WALMART 690	1001 OVER MOUNTAIN DR.	ELIZABETHTON, TN 37643
*	FOOD LION 323	915 N MAIN ST.	ERWIN, TN 37650
	FOOD CITY 747	841 US 411 N.	ETOWAH, TN 37331
	PUBLIX 1360	7014 CITY CENTER WAY	FAIRVIEW, TN 37062
	WALMART 3137	7100 HOPGOOD RD.	FAIRVIEW, TN 37643
	FRESH MARKET 21	11535 KINGSTON PIKE	FARRAGUT, TN 37934
	INGLES 91	11847 KINGSTON PIKE	FARRAGUT, TN 37934
	KROGER 686	189 BROOKLAWN ST.	FARRAGUT, TN 37934
*	WALMART 314	1224 HUNTSVILLE HIGHWAY	FAYETTEVILLE, TN 37334
	PUBLIX 176	1021 RIVERSIDE DR.	FRANKLIN, TN 37069
	ALDI 52	209 S. ROYAL OAKS BOULEVARD	FRANKLIN, TN 37064
	KROGER 568	411 WHITMAN RD.	FRANKLIN, TN 37064
	KROGER 570	3054 COLUMBIA AVE	FRANKLIN, TN 37064
	KROGER 576	595 HILLSBORO RD.	FRANKLIN, TN 37064
*	PUBLIX 1529	5021 HUGHES CROSSING BLVD.	FRANKLIN, TN 37064
	SPROUTS 580	1010 MURFREESBORO RD. SUITE 194	FRANKLIN, TN 37064

KROGER 526	2020 MALLORY LANE	FRANKLIN, TN 37067
KROGER 592	1203 MURFRESBORO RD. 1400 LIBERTY PIKE, STE	FRANKLIN, TN 37067
PUBLIX 1031	200	FRANKLIN, TN 37067
SAM'S CLUB 6249	3070 MALLORY LN.	FRANKLIN, TN 37067
WALMART 272	3600 MALLORY LN.	FRANKLIN, TN 37067
WHOLE FOODS 1	1566 WEST MCEWEN DR.	FRANKLIN, TN 37067
PUBLIX 160	2020 FIELDSTONE PKWY	FRANKLIN, TN 37069
ALDI 60	571 VILLAGE GREEN DR.	GALLATIN, TN 37066
FOOD LION 725	471 EAST MAIN ST.	GALLATIN, TN 37066
KROGER 569	2011 NASHVILLE PIKE	GALLATIN, TN 37066
KROGER 897	845 NASHVILLE PIKE	GALLATIN, TN 37066
PUBLIX 1033	1483 NASHVILLE PIKE	GALLATIN, TN 37066
WALMART 674	1112 NASHVILLE PIKE	GALLATIN, TN 37066
FOOD CITY 611	1219 E. PARKWAY HWY 321	GATLINBURG, TN 37738
FRESH MARKET 39	9375 POPLAR AVE.	GERMANTOWN, TN 38138
KROGER 419	7735 FARMINGTON BLVD.	GERMANTOWN, TN 38138
WHOLE FOODS 2	7828 US HWY 72	GERMANTOWN, TN 38138
SPROUTS 579	3150 VILLAGE SHOPS DR. SUITE 105	GERMANTOWN, TN 38738
H.G HILL 38	212 GOODLETTSVILLE PLAZA	GOODLETTSVILLE, TN 3707.
KROGER 541	123 NORTHCREEK BLVD.	GOODLETTSVILLE, TN 3707
PUBLIX 1141	460 LONG HOLLOW PIKE	GOODLETTSVILLE, TN 3707
FOOD CITY 670	125 JUDGE GRESHAM RD.	GRAY, TN 37615
FOOD CITY 608	509 ASHEVILLE HWY	GREENEVILLE, TN 37743
INGLES 21	625 ASHEVILLE HWY	GREENEVILLE, TN 37743
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 108	225 EAST ANDREW JOHNSON HWY	GREENEVILLE, TN 37743
FOOD CITY 606	905 SHAPPS FERRY RD.	GREENEVILLE, TN 37745
FOOD CITY 663	2755 E. ANDREW JOHNSON HWY	GREENEVILLE, TN 37745
INGLES 70	JOHNSON 1625 E. ANDREW	GREENEVILLE, TN 37745
INGLES 870	JOHNSON HWY	GREENEVILLE, TN 37745
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 129	2490 ANDREW JOHNSON HWY	GREENEVILLE, TN 37745
WALMART 680	JOHNSON HWY	GREENEVILLE, TN 37745
FOOD CITY 634	1130 S. ROAN ST.	HARRIMAN, TN 37748
KROGER 628	1820 ROAN STATE HIGHWAY	HARRIMAN, TN 37748
FOOD CITY 717	8634 HIGHWAY 58	HARRISON, TN 37341
ALDI 56	500 W. MAIN STREET	HENDERSONVILLE, TN 3707

	CASH SAVER 11	213 W. MAIN ST.	HENDERSONVILLE, TN 37075
	KROGER 519	170 E. MAIN ST.	HENDERSONVILLE, TN 37075
	KROGER 571	1010 GLENBROOK WAY	HENDERSONVILLE, TN 37075
	PUBLIX 119	110 INDIAN LAKE BLVD.	HENDERSONVILLE, TN 37075
	SAM'S CLUB 8257	301 INDIAN LAKE BLVD.	HENDERSONVILLE, TN 37075
	TOTAL CONVENIENCE	593 NEW SHACKLE ISLAND RD.	HENDERSONVILLE, TN 37075
	WALMART 1376	204 NO.ANDERSON LN.	HENDERSONVILLE, TN 37075
	ALDI 51	4751 LEBANON PIKE	HERMITAGE, TN 37076
	KROGER 518	5544 OLD HICKORY BLVD.	HERMITAGE, TN 37076
	KROGER 866	4400 LEBANON RD.	HERMITAGE, TN 37076
	WALMART 710	4424 LEBANON PIKE	HERMITAGE, TN 37076
	ALDI 92	5510 HIGHWAY 153, SUITE 1	HIXSON, TN 37343
e .	FOOD CITY 703	5604 HIXSON PIKE	HIXSON, TN 37343
	FOOD CITY 713	8530 HIXSON PIKE	HIXSON, TN 37343
	PUBLIX 1166	5928 HIXSON PK, STE 112	HIXSON, TN 37343
	WALMART 1606	5764 HIGHWAY 153	HIXSON, TN 37343
*	WALMART 5188	7636 MIDDLE VALLEY RD.	HIXSON, TN 37343
*	WALMART 1115	612 E MAIN ST.	HOHENWALD, TN 38462
	WALMART 120	2716 N CENTRAL AVE.	HUMBOLDT, TN 38343
	FOOD GIANT 1	1727 S. HIGHLAND	JACKSON, TN 38301
	WALMART 393	2171 S. HIGHLAND AVE.	JACKSON, TN 38301
	ALDI 75	6 STONEBRIDGE BLVD. STE C	JACKSON, TN 38305
	FOOD GIANT 2	2596 CHRISTMASVILLE COVE	JACKSON, TN 38305
	KROGER 398	941 N. PARKWAY	JACKSON, TN 38305
	KROGER 448	41 STONEBROOK PLACE	JACKSON, TN 38305
	KROGER 468	35 W. UNIVERSITY PKWY	JACKSON, TN 38305
	SAM'S CLUB 6507	2120 EMPORIUM DR.	JACKSON, TN 38305
	WALMART 335	2196 EMPORIUM DR.	JACKSON, TN 38305
	FOOD CITY 615	1507 O' DELL AVE.	JEFFERSON CITY, TN 37760
	WALMART 724	630 E. BROADWAY BLVD.	JEFFERSON CITY, TN 37760
li e	TONY'S FOODLAND	5529 CLARKSVILLE HWY	JOELTON, TN 37080
	FOOD CITY 601	2120 S. ROAN ST.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37601
	FOOD LION 218	3120 BRISTOL HWY.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37601
	FRESH MARKET 132	421 N. STATE OF FRANKLIN RD.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37601
	KENJO MARKET 46	1518 MILLIGAN HWY	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37601
	PRICE LESS FOODS 486	1950 S. ROAN STREET	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37601
	ROADRUNNER MARKETS	1310 CHEROKEE RD.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37601

114		
ROADRUNNER MARKETS	1702 W. MARKET ST.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37601
ROADRUNNER MARKETS	1702 17. 177 11.121 311	Johnson em jin szest
131	2900 BRISTOL HIGHWAY	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37601
ROADRUNNER MARKETS	004 11/2 11/4 11/4 17/5	TOTAL CITY THE 27004
132 ROADRUNNER MARKETS	901 W. WALNUT ST.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37601
133	1512 STATE OF FRANKLIN	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37601
ROADRUNNER MARKETS		
143	607 TWIN OAKS DR.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37601
ROADRUNNER MARKETS	4000 FACT HALAKA AVE	IOLINICON CITY TN 27601
147 ROADRUNNER MARKETS	1908 EAST UNAKA AVE.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37601
167	408 N. BROADWAY	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37601
ROADRUNNER MARKETS		
169	1001 S. ROAN ST.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37601
ROADRUNNER MARKETS	E27 DRINGETON DD	IOHNICONICITY TNI 27602
105	527 PRINCETON RD.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37602
ALDI 80	1400 W. MARKET STREET	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37604
EARTH FARE 410	1735 W. STATE OF FRANKLIN RD.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37604
EXITTIANE 410	920 N. STATE OF	JOHNSON CHT, IN 37004
FOOD CITY 629	FRANKLIN RD.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37604
KROGER 261	112 SUNSET DR.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37604
	1805 W. STATE OF	
KROGER 367	FRANKLIN	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37604
ROADRUNNER MARKETS	832 N. STATE OF	LOUISION CITY THE OTION
137 ROADRUNNER MARKETS	FRANKLIN	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37604
142	900 SUNSET DR.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37604
ROADRUNNER MARKETS		
170	2810 W. WALNUT ST.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37604
SAM'S CLUB 8222	3060 FRANKLIN TERRACE DR.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37604
WALMART 1080	3111 BROWNS MILL RD.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37604
WALMART 3829	2915 W. MARKET ST.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37604
FOOD CITY 641	4307 N. ROAN ST.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37615
INGLES 372	4470 N. ROAN ST.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37615
ROADRUNNER MARKETS	2607 6011711 00441 67	TOUNISON CITY TN 27615
104 ROADRUNNER MARKETS	2607 SOUTH ROAN ST.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37615
107	4700 NORTH ROAN ST.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37615
ROADRUNNER MARKETS	5022 BOBBY HICK	
111	HIGHWAY	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37615
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 139	2695 BOONES CREEK RD.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37615
ROADRUNNER MARKETS	5019 BOBBY HICKS	JOHNSON CHT, IN 37013
155	HIGHWAY	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37615
ROADRUNNER MARKETS		
161	2900 N. ROAN ST.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37686
FOOD CITY 640	500 FOREST DR.	JONESBOROUGH, TN 37659
INGLES 398	1200 W. JACKSON BLVD.	JONESBOROUGH, TN 37659

123 ROADRUNNER MARKI	101 E. JACKSON BLVD.	JONESBOROUGH, TN 37659
124	141 BOONE ST.	JONESBOROUGH, TN 37659
	525 KIMBALL CROSSING	
WALMART 1089	DR.	KIMBALL, TN 37347
ROADRUNNER MARKI		WINGSPORT THE 27502
109 ROADRUNNER MARKI	1104 SOUTH WILCOX DR.	KINGSPORT, TN 37602
145	4222 FORT HENRY DR.	KINGSPORT, TN 37602
ALDI 81	2617 E. STONE DRIVE	KINGSPORT, TN 37660
FOOD CITY 657	300 CLINCHFIELD ST.	KINGSPORT, TN 37660
KENJO MARKET 17	2209 W. STONE DR.	KINGSPORT, TN 37660
KROGER 328	1664 EAST STONE DR.	KINGSPORT, TN 37660
PRICE LESS FOODS 46	9 4320 A WEST STONE DR.	KINGSPORT, TN 37660
	3006 N. JOHN B. DENNIS	11
PRICE LESS FOODS 47		KINGSPORT, TN 37660
PRICE LESS FOODS 48		KINGSPORT, TN 37660
ROADRUNNER MARKE	ETS 120 EAST STONE DR.	KINGSPORT, TN 37660
ROADRUNNER MARKE		J
144 ROADRUNNER MARKE	101 HOSPITALITY PL.	KINGSPORT, TN 37660
154	1600 W. STONE DR.	KINGSPORT, TN 37660
ROADRUNNER MARKE	ETS 1045 BLOOMINGDALE PIKE	KINGSPORT, TN 37660
ROADRUNNER MARKE	ETS	
176	828 W. CENTER ST.	KINGSPORT, TN 37660
WALMART 5734	750 LYNN GARDEN DR.	KINGSPORT, TN 37660
WALMART 599	3200 FT. HENRY DR.	KINGSPORT, TN 37660
WALMART 742	2500 W. STONE DR.	KINGSPORT, TN 37660
FOOD CITY 664	1911 MORELAND DR.	KINGSPORT, TN 37663
INGLES 72	4335 FT. HENRY DR.	KINGSPORT, TN 37663
ROADRUNNER MARKE		
174	1205 LYNN GARDEN DR.	KINGSPORT, TN 37663
FOOD CITY 605	1205 N. EASTMAN RD.	KINGSPORT, TN 37664
ROADRUNNER MARKE	TS 4001 MEMORIAL BLVD.	KINGSPORT, TN 37665
.,,,	134 W. KINGSTON	11031 01(1) 114 37003
LAWRENCE FOODS	SPRINGS RD.	KINGSTON SPRINGS, TN 3708
TOOD CITY (52)	1000 LADD LANDING	KINICCTON TNI 27762
FOOD CITY 653	BLVD.	KINGSTON, TN 37763
FOOD CITY 677	5078 CLINTON HWY	KNOXVILLE, TN 37912
INGLES 307	215 CEDAR LANE	KNOXVILLE, TN 37912
KROGER 549	6702 CLINTON HIGHWAY	KNOXVILLE, TN 37912
WALMART 1318	6777 CLINTON HWY	KNOXVILLE, TN 37912
KROGER 558	4414 ASHEVILLE HIGHWAY	KNOXVILLE, TN 37914
PUBLIX 1418	2429 UNIVERSITY	KNOXVILLE, TN 37916

	COMMONS WAY	
FOOD CITY 673	4216 N. BROADWAY ST.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37917
KROGER 506	2217 N. BROADWAY ST.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37917
FOOD CITY 685	4805 N. BROADWAY ST,	KNOXVILLE, TN 37918
FOOD CITY 688	7202 MAYNARDVILLE HWY	KNOXVILLE, TN 37918
INGLES 305	7220 NORRIS FREEWAY	KNOXVILLE, TN 37918
KROGER 698	5201 NORTH BROADWAY	KNOXVILLE, TN 37918
BUTLER & BAILEY	7513 NORTHSHORE DR.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37919
EARTH FARE 405	140 NORTH FOREST PARK BLVD.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37919
FOOD CITY 674	5941 KINGSTON PIKE	KNOXVILLE, TN 37919
FOOD CITY 694	284 MORRELL RD.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37919
FRESH MARKET 11	4475 KINGSTON PIKE	KNOXVILLE, TN 37919
KROGER 848	4918 KINGSTON PIKE	KNOXVILLE, TN 37919
TRADER JOES 663	8001 KINGSTON PIKE	KNOXVILLE, TN 37919
WALMART 4167	2501 UNIVERSITY COMMONS WAY	KNOXVILLE, TN 37919
WHOLE FOODS 3	6730 PAPERMILL DR.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37919
FOOD CITY 682	7608 MOUNTAIN GROVE DR.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37920
KENJO MARKET 11	1400 N. CENTRAL	KNOXVILLE, TN 37920
KENJO MARKET 12	3644 SEVIERVILLE PIKE	KNOXVILLE, TN 37920
KENJO MARKET 31	3120 CHAPMAN HWY,	KNOXVILLE, TN 37920
KROGER 531	4409 CHAPMAN HIGHWAY	KNOXVILLE, TN 37920
WALMART 1320	7420 CHAPMAN HWY	KNOXVILLE, TN 37920
ALDI 10	2801 SCHAAD RD.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37921
ALDI 15	5220 KINGSTON PIKE	KNOXVILLE, TN 37921
FOOD CITY 676	1950 WESTERN AVE.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37921
FOOD CITY 678	5801 WESTERN AVE.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37921
KROGER 870	4440 WESTERN AVE.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37921
WALMART 3959	3120 MCKAMEY RD.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37921
ALDI 12	110 MOSS GROVE BLVD.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37922
KENJO MARKET 29	10139 KINGSTON PIKE	KNOXVILLE, TN 37922
KROGER 525	9501 S. NORTHSHORE DR.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37922
KROGER 684	9225 KINGSTON PIKE	KNOXVILLE, TN 37922
PUBLIX 1416	2010 TOWN CENTER BLVD.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37922
KROGER 530	9161 MIDDLEBROOK PIKE	KNOXVILLE, TN 37923
SAM'S CLUB 8256	8435 WALBROOK DR.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37923
WALMART 2065	8445 WALBROOK DR.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37923

	FOOD CITY 655	7510 ASHEVILLE HWY.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37924
	FOOD CITY 687	2712 LOWES CREEK RD.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37924
	KENJO MARKET 22	7406 STRAW PLAINS PKWY	KNOXVILLE, TN 37924
	SAM'S CLUB 6572	2920 KNOXVILLE CENTER DR.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37924
	WALMART 2310	3051 KINZEL WAY	KNOXVILLE, TN 37924
	FOOD CITY 672	9565 MIDDLEBROOK PIKE	KNOXVILLE, TN 37931
	INGLES 304	7466 OAK RIDGE HWY	KNOXVILLE, TN 37931
	KENJO MARKET 21	8901 OAK RIDGE HWY	KNOXVILLE, TN 37931
	500D CITY 616	11501 HARDIN VALLEY	KNOWILLE THE 27022
	FOOD CITY 616	RD.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37932
	COSTCO 1116	10745 KINGSTON PIKE	KNOXVILLE, TN 37934
	EARTH FARE 400	10903 PARKSIDE DR.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37934
	PUBLIX 1415	11656 PARKSIDE DR.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37934
	WALMART 2932	10900 PARKSIDE DR.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37934
	ALDI 11	4109 E. EMORY RD.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37938
	WALMART 1319	7550 NORRIS FWY	KNOXVILLE, TN 37938
	FOOD CITY 609	2946 WINFIELD DUNN PARKWAY	KODAK, TN 37764
	KENJO MARKET 42	3422 WINFIELD DUNN PKWY	KODAK, TN 37764
*	KROGER 566	5145 MURGREESBORO RD.	LA VERGNE, TN 37086
	WALMART 7020	5511 MURFREESBORO RD.	LA VERGNE, TN 37086
	FOOD CITY 661	2221 JACKSBORO PIKE, SUITE B1	LAFOLLETTE, TN 37757
	KROGER 440	9025 US HIGHWAY 64	LAKELAND, TN 38002
	SPROUTS 578	9050 HWY 64, SUITE A	LAKELAND, TN 38002
	KROGER 868	1700 N. LOCUST AVE.	LAWRENCEBURG, TN 38464
	WALMART 683	2130 N LOCUST AVE.	LAWRENCEBURG, TN 38464
	ALDI 42	108 CIRCLE DR.	LEBANON, TN 37087
	KROGER 557	1418 W. MAIN ST. SUITE A	LEBANON, TN 37087
	PUBLIX 1175	1702 WEST MAIN ST.	LEBANON, TN 37087
	WALMART 671	615 S. CUMBERLAND ST.	LEBANON, TN 37087
	KENJO MARKET 27	1104 HWY 321 N.	LENIOR CITY, TN 37771
	FOOD CITY 650	300 MARKET DR.	LENOIR CITY, TN 37771
	INGLES 71	404 HWY 321 NORTH	LENOIR CITY, TN 37771
	WALMART 741	911 HIGHWAY 321 N,	LENOIR CITY, TN 37771
	KROGER 534	301 S. ELLINGTON PKWY	LEWISBURG, TN 37091
	PRICE LESS IGA 585	1770 MOORESVILLE ROAD	LEWISBURG, TN 37091
	WALMART 737	1334 NO. ELLINGTON P	LEWISBURG, TN 37091

	WALMART 684	547 W. CHURCH ST,	LEXINGTON, TN 38351
*	FOOD LION 1381	400 MARKET SQUARE PLZ	LIVINGSTON, TN 38570
	FOOD CITY 632	2799 HWY. 72 N.	LOUDON, TN 37774
	KENJO MARKET 3	4228 AIRPORT HWY	LOUISVILLE, TN 37777
	ALDI 17	135 Gallatin Pike S.	MADISON, TN 37115
	KROGER 514	200 GALLATIN PIKE SOUTH	MADISON, TN 37115
	WALMART 5107	109 GALLATIN PIKE N.	MADISON, TN 37115
	WALMART 695	2232 GALLATIN PIKE	MADISON, TN 37115
*	WALMART 366	4525 HIGHWAY 411	MADISONVILLE, TN 37354
	FOOD LION 722	944 HILLSBOROUGH RD.	MANCHESTER, TN 37355
	WALMART 308	2518 HILLSBORO BLVD.	MANCHESTER, TN 37355
	E.W. JAMES & SONS - MARTIN	145, COMMONS Dr.	MARTIN, TN 38237
	RULER'S 341	144 UNIVERSITY DR.	MARTIN, TN 38237
	WALMART 107	134 COURTRIGHT RD.	MARTIN, TN 38237
	FOOD CITY 651	1610 W. BROADWAY AVE.	MARYVILLE, TN 37801
	KENJO MARKET 26	2601 US HWY 411 S.	MARYVILLE, TN 37801
	KROGER 683	507 N. FOOTHILLS PLAZA	MARYVILLE, TN 37801
	WALMART 4223	2410 US HWY 411 S.	MARYVILLE, TN 37801
	KENJO MARKET 15	815 MONTVALE RD.	MARYVILLE, TN 37803
	FOOD CITY 647	2135 E. BROADWAY AVE.	MARYVILLE, TN 37804
	FOOD LION 1362	1707 LAMAR ALEXANDER PKY	MARYVILLE, TN 37804
	FOOD LION 1467	2917 OLD KNOXVILLE HWY	MARYVILLE, TN 37804
	KENJO MARKET 24	2003 E. BROADWAY	MARYVILLE, TN 37804
	KENJO MARKET 8	1811 SEVIERVILLE RD.	MARYVILLE, TN 37804
	E.W. JAMES & SONS - MCKENZIE	160, SOUTH MAIN	MCKENZIE, TN 38201
K:	WALMART 668	915 N CHANCERY ST.	MCMINNVILLE, TN 37110
	MISS CORDELIA'S	737 MISS CORDELIA'S GROCERY	MEMPHIS, TN 38103
	CASTLE 11	1620 MADISON AVE.	MEMPHIS, TN 38104
	FRESH MARKET 194	2145 UNION AVE, SUITE 110	MEMPHIS, TN 38104
	KROGER 402	1759 UNION AVE.	MEMPHIS, TN 38104
	KROGER 415	1366 POPLAR AVE.	MEMPHIS, TN 38104
	KROGER 288	1977 S. 3RD ST.	MEMPHIS, TN 38109
	KROGER 488	3444 PLAZA AVE.	MEMPHIS, TN 38111
	SAM'S CLUB 8258	1805 GETWELL RD.	MEMPHIS, TN 38111
	ALDI 71	2877 LAMAR AVENUE	MEMPHIS, TN 38114
	KROGER 413	2269 LAMAR AVE.	MEMPHIS, TN 38114

SUPERLO 4	6532 WINCHESTER	MEMPHIS, TN 38115
WALMART 5122	2856 HICKORY HILLS RD,	MEMPHIS, TN 38115
ALDI 70	4056 ELVIS PRESLEY	MENADLIC TNI 20116
ALDI 70	BLVD. 4049 ELVIS PRESLEY	MEMPHIS, TN 38116
CASTLE 51	BLVD.	MEMPHIS, TN 38116
KROGER 486	1212 EAST SHELBY DR.	MEMPHIS, TN 38116
1441 A44 DT 5406	5255 ELVIS PRESLEY	AASAADUUS TAL 20446
WALMART 5196	BLVD. 835 S. WHITE STATION	MEMPHIS, TN 38116
FRESH MARKET 41	RD.	MEMPHIS, TN 38117
KROGER 430	540 SOUTH MENDENHALL	MEMPHIS, TN 38117
KROGER 491	799 TRUSE PARKWAY	MEMPHIS, TN 38117
SUPERLO 1	4744 SPOTTSWOOD	MEMPHIS, TN 38117
SUPERLO 6	4571 QUINCE RD.	MEMPHIS, TN 38117
WHOLE FOODS 4	5014 POPLAR AVE.	MEMPHIS, TN 38117
ALDI 68	2765 S PERKINS ROAD	MEMPHIS, TN 38118
CASTLE 164	3071 S. PERKINS RD.	MEMPHIS, TN 38118
CASTLE 56	3237 WINCHESTER RD.	MEMPHIS, TN 38118
KROGER 451	2835 KIRBY PARKWAY	MEMPHIS, TN 38119
ALDI 69	4508 SUMMER AVENUE	MEMPHIS, TN 38122
BURKHEAD ENTERPRISES		
- EAST MEMPHIS- CASH SAVER	729 N. WHITE STATION RD.	MEMPHIS, TN 38122
KROGER 439	4264 SUMMER AVE	MEMPHIS, TN 38122
SUPERLO 5	3942 MACON RD.	MEMPHIS, TN 38122
ALDI 65	7520 WINCHESTER ROAD	MEMPHIS, TN 38125
COSTCO 353	3775 HACKS CROSS	MEMPHIS, TN 38125
KROGER 437	7942 WINCHESTER RD.	MEMPHIS, TN 38125
SAM'S CLUB 6256	7475 WINCHESTER RD.	MEMPHIS, TN 38125
WALMART 1248	7525 WINCHESTER RD.	MEMPHIS, TN 38125
WALMART 5043	6990 E. SHELBY DR.	MEMPHIS, TN 38125
KROGER 425	2632 FRAYSER BLVD.	MEMPHIS, TN 38127
SUPERLO 3	3327 N. WALKINS	MEMPHIS, TN 38127
ALDI 63	3176 AUSTIN PEAY	MENADLIC TN 20120
ALDI 62	HIGHWAY 3860 AUSTIN PEAY	MEMPHIS, TN 38128
KROGER 438	HIGHWAY	MEMPHIS, TN 38128
SAM'S CLUB 8292	2150 COVINGTON PIKE	MEMPHIS, TN 38128
SUPERLO 2	2155 COVINGTON PIKE	MEMPHIS, TN 38128
WALMART 1561	3950 AUSTIN PEAY HWY	MEMPHIS, TN 38128
WALMART 6807	6727 RALEIGH LAGRANGE RD.	MEMPHIS, TN 38133

KROGER 401	4770 RIVERDALE RD.	MEMPHIS, TN 38141
WALMART 104	15427 S FRIST ST	MILAN, TN 38358
KROGER 393	8039 HWY. 51 NORTH	MILLINGTON, TN 38053
WALMART 94	8445 US HWY 51 N.	MILLINGTON, TN 38053
PIGGLY WIGGLY 340	754 W. MAIN ST.	MONTEAGLE, TN 37356
FOOD CITY 602	1105 E. MORRIS BLVD.	MORRISTOWN, TN 37813
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 178	924 E. MORRIS BLVD.	MORRISTOWN, TN 37813
WALMART 685	475 CROCKETT TRACE DR.	MORRISTOWN, TN 37813
ALDI 9	154 W. PIN LANE	MORRISTOWN, TN 37814
FOOD CITY 607	2310 SANDSTONE DR.	MORRISTOWN, TN 37814
FOOD CITY 646	4100 COOL SPRINGS RD.	MORRISTOWN, TN 37814
INGLES 313	2342 E. ANDREW JOHNSON HWY	MORRISTOWN, TN 37814
INGLES 85	3980 W. ANDREW JOHNSON HWY.	MORRISTOWN, TN 37814
PRICE LESS FOODS 473	JOHNSON HWY.	MORRISTOWN, TN 37814
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 179	3700 W. ANDREW	MORRISTOWN, TN 37814
ROADRUNNER MARKETS	JOHNSON HWY	MORRISTOWN, IN 37614
180	1344 BUFFALO TRAIL	MORRISTOWN, TN 37814
WALMART 5467	1997 BUFFALO TRAIL	MORRISTOWN, TN 37814
WALMART 5468	1757 W. ANDREW JOHNSON HWY	MORRISTOWN, TN 37814
WALMART 6370	4331 W. ANDRW JOHNSON HWY	MORRISTOWN, TN 37814
ALDI 55	315 MT. JULIET RD.	MT. JULIET, TN 37122
ALDI 33	401 S. MT. JULIET RD,	WIT. JOEIET, TN 37122
KROGER 578	SUITE 200 4120 NORTH MT. JULIET	MT. JULIET, TN 37122
KROGER 590	RD.	MT. JULIET, TN 37122
PUBLIX 1220	11207 LEBANON RD.	MT. JULIET, TN 37122
PUBLIX 1268	655 SOUTH MT. JULIET RD.	MT. JULIET, TN 37122
WALMART 4482	300 PLEASANT GROVE RD, SUITE 600	MT. JULIET, TN 37122
TIETGENS	807 N. MAIN ST.	MT. PLEASANT, TN 38474
NAIFEH'S FOOD MARKET	27 CRIGGER	MUNFORD, TN 38058
KROGER 543	2946 S. CHURCH ST.	MURFREESBORO, TN 37127
WALMART 416	140 JOE B JACKSON PARKWAY	MURFREESBORO, TN 37127
ALDI 41	640 ROBERT ROSE DR.	MURFREESBORO, TN 37128
KROGER 532	2449 OLD FORT PARKWAY	MURFREESBORO, TN 37128
KROGER 565	4432 VETERANS PWKY	MURFREESBORO, TN 37128
PUBLIX 1172	4175 FRANKLIN RD.	MURFREESBORO, TN 37128
WALMART 5148	1153 FORTRESS BLVD.	MURFREESBORO, TN 37128

WALMART 5182	2478 NEW SALEM HWY	MURFREESBORO, TN 37128
KROGER 529	1776 W NORTHFIELD BLVD.	MURFREESBORO, TN 37129
KROGER 539	2325 MEMORIAL BLVD	MURFREESBORO, TN 37129
PUBLIX 1164	3415 MEMORIAL BLVD	MURFREESBORO, TN 37129
PUBLIX 1234	2650 NEW SALEM HIGHWAY	MURFREESBORO, TN 37129
SAM'S CLUB 6501	125 JOHN R. RICE BLVD.	MURFREESBORO, TN 37129
SPROUTS 581	143 WENDELWOOD DR.	MURFREESBORO, TN 37129
WALMART 2757	2012 MEMORIAL BLVD.	MURFREESBORO, TN 37129
WALMART 682	2000 OLD FOR PKWY	MURFREESBORO, TN 37129
KROGER 521	1622 MIDDLE TENNESSEE BLVD.	MURFREESBORO, TN 37130
KROGER 564	2050 LASCASSAS PIKE	MURFREESBORO, TN 37130
PRICE LESS IGA 8	3060 SOUTH CHURCH STREET	MURFREESBORO, TN 37130
PUBLIX 1163	1731 S. RUTHERFORD BLVD	MURFREESBORO, TN 37130
WALMART 5057	2900 S. RUTHERFORD BLVD.	MURFREESBORO, TN 37130
PUBLIX 182	4670 LEBANON PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37076
PIGGLY WIGGLY 41	2900 WEST END AVE.	NASHVILLE, TN 37203
TURNIP TRUCK 2	321 12TH AVEENUE S.	NASHVILLE, TN 37203
KROGER 511	2615 FRANKLIN PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37204
WALMART 5616	2421 POWELL AVE.	NASHVILLE, TN 37204
KROGER 843	4560 HARDING RD.	NASHVILLE, TN 37205
PUBLIX 1211	4324 HARDING PLACE	NASHVILLE, TN 37205
ALDI 47	615 GALLATIN AVE.	NASHVILLE, TN 37206
KROGER 880	711 GALLATIN AVE	NASHVILLE, TN 37206
TURNIP TRUCK 1	701 WOODLAND ST.	NASHVILLE, TN 37206
H.G HILL 9	3105 DICKERSON RD.	NASHVILLE, TN 37207
WALMART 4435	3548 DICKERSON PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37207
KROGER 502	800 MONROE ST.	NASHVILLE, TN 37208
ALDI 46	405 AMERICAN RD.	NASHVILLE, TN 37209
COSTCO 630	6670 CHARLOTTE PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37209
KROGER 547	5705 CHARLOTTE PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37209
PUBLIX 1298	6614 CHARLOTTE PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37209
SAM'S CLUB 6447	615 OLD HICKORY BLVD.	NASHVILLE, TN 37209
WALMART 659	7044 CHARLOTTE PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37209
ALDI 48	3758 NOLENSVILLE PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37211
KROGER 537	5713 EDMONDSON PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37211
KROGER 542	61 EAST THOMPSON LANE	NASHVILLE, TN 37211

KROGER 851	5771 NOLENSVILLE RD.	NASHVILLE, TN 37211
OSBORNE'S BI-RITE 104	3302 NOLENSVILLE RD.	NASHVILLE, TN 37211
PIGGLY WIGGLY 40	5127 NOLENSVILLE RD.	NASHVILLE, TN 37211
PUBLIX 1116	15544 OLD HICKORY BLVD.	NASHVILLE, TN 37211
SAM'S CLUB 8294	1300 ANTIOCH PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37211
WALMART 3717	4040 NOLENSVILLE PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37211
WALMART 5119	5531 EDMONDSON PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37211
WALMART 688	5824 NOLENSVILLE PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37211
KROGER 567	2201 21ST. AVENUE SOUTH	NASHVILLE, TN 37212
OSBORNE'S BI-RITE 14	3116 BELMONT BLVD.	NASHVILLE, TN 37212
FOOD LION 1617	3636 BELL RD.	NASHVILLE, TN 37214
KROGER 845	143 MCGAVOCK PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37214
PUBLIX 1426	2324 LEBANON PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37214
KROGER 895	2131 ABBOTT MARTIN RD.	NASHVILLE, TN 37215
TRADER JOES 664	3909 HILLSBORO PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37215
WHOLE FOODS 5	4021 HILLSBORO PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37215
KROGER 884	3410 GALLATIN PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37216
ALDI 45	1911 RANSOM PLACE	NASHVILLE, TN 37217
COMPTON FOODS	2808 SMITH SPRINGS	NASHVILLE, TN 37217
KROGER 574	2284 MURFREESBORO RD.	NASHVILLE, TN 37217
KROGER 533	3930 CLARKSVILLE PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37218
H.G. HILLS FOOD STORE 12	415 CHURCH ST.	NASHVILLE, TN 37219
KROGER 550	8141 STATE HIGHWAY	NASHVILLE, TN 37221
PUBLIX 1133	8028 HIGHWAY 100	NASHVILLE, TN 37221
PUBLIX 123	7604 HIGHWAY 70 SOUTH	NASHVILLE, TN 37221
FOOD CITY 604	416 EASTERN PLAZA SHOPPING CENTER	NEWPORT, TN 37821
FOOD CITY 614	181 WESTERN PLAZA WAY	NEWPORT, TN 37821
KENJO MARKET 6	1004 COSBY HWY	NEWPORT, TN 37821
PRICE LESS FOODS 475	208 W. BROADWAY	NEWPORT, TN 37821
WALMART 678	1075 COSBY HWY	NEWPORT, TN 37821
ARCHERS FOOD CENTER	27 W. NORRIS RD.	NORRIS, TN 37828
ALDI 14	111 WOODLAND TERRACE E.	OAK RIDGE, TN 37830
FOOD CITY 681	1199 OAK RIDGE TURNPIKE	OAK RIDGE, TN 37830
HANKS MARKET 45	691, EMORY VALLEY RD.	OAK RIDGE, TN 37830
KROGER 690	1550 OAK RIDGE	OAK RIDGE, TN 37830

		TURNPIKE	
	WALMART 1194	373 S. ILLINOIS AVE.	OAK RIDGE, TN 37830
	KROGER 462	7265 HWY 64	OAKLAND, TN 38060
	WALMART 4533	105 CHICKASAW RIDGE DR.	OAKLAND, TN 38060
	PRICE LESS IGA 492	4331 OLD HICKORY BLVD.	OLD HICKORY, TN 37138
	ALDI 88	5974 ELEMENTARY WAY	OOLTEWAH, TN 37363
	FOOD CITY 773	1667 OOLTEWAH- RING GOLD	OOLTEWAH, TN 37363
	FOOD CITY 774	6043 RELOCATION WAY	OOLTEWAH, TN 37363
	PUBLIX 1244	5958 SNOW HILL RD, STE 168	OOLTEWAH, TN 37363
	WALMART 3835	5588 LITTLE DEBBIE PARKWAY	OOLTEWAH, TN 37363
	KROGER 391	1059 MINERAL WELLS	PARIS, TN 38242
	WALMART 177	1210 MINERAL WELLS AVE	PARIS, TN 38242
	PUBLIX 1515	2656 PARKWAY	PIGEON FORGE , TN 37863
	FOOD CITY 610	3625 PARKWAY	PIGEON FORGE, TN 37863
	KENJO MARKET 40	3145 PARKWAY	PIGEON FORGE, TN 37863
	KENJO MARKET 43	2870 GOOSE GAP RD.	PIGEON FORGE, TN 37863
	KROGER 536	220 WEARS VALLEY RD.	PIGEON FORGE, TN 37863
	ROADRUNNER MARKETS 165	6757 BRISTOL HWY	PINEY FLATS, TN 37602
	FOOD CITY 699	6681 BRISTOL HWY	PINEY FLATS, TN 37686
	H.G. HILLS FOOD STORE 86	2498 HWY 49 E.	PLEASANT VIEW, TN 37146
·	FOOD LION 1418	304 SOUTH BROADWAY ST.	PORTLAND, TN 37418
	FOOD CITY 679	7350 CLINTON HWY	POWELL, TN 37849
	INGLES 399	430 E. EMORY RD.	POWELL, TN 37849
	KENJO MARKET 23	404 E. EMORY RD.	POWELL, TN 37849
	KROGER 670	234 E. EMORY RD.	POWELL, TN 37849
	WALMART 238	1655 W COLLEGE ST.	PULASKI, TN 38478
	FOOD CITY 727	3901 DAYTON BLVD.	RED BANK, TN 37415
	E.W. JAMES & SONS -	286, SOUTH	DIDLEY TN 20062
	RIPLEY WALMART 97	WASHINGTON 628 HWY 51 N.	RIPLEY, TN 38063 RIPLEY, TN 38063
	WALMART 676	1102 NO. GATEWAY AVE.	ROCKWOOD, TN 37854
	FOOD CITY 612	1287 E. MAIN ST.	ROGERSVILLE, TN 37857
	WALMART 3234	4331 HWY 66 S.	ROGERSVILLE, TN 37857
	KROGER 484	775 PICKWICK RD.	SAVANNAH, TN 38372
	WALMART 268	175 JI BELL LANE	SAVANNAH, TN 38372
	WALMART 218	1017 MULBERRY AVE.	SELMER, TN 38375

	ALDI 16	538 WINFIELD DUNN PARKWAY	SEVIERVILLE, TN 37862
	FOOD CITY 667	741 DOLLY PARTON PARKWAY	SEVIERVILLE, TN 37862
	WALMART 578	1414 PARKWAY	SEVIERVILLE, TN 37862
	WALMART 5908	1185 DOLLY PARTON PARKWAY	SEVIERVILLE, TN 37862
	KROGER 562	702 WINFIELD DUNN PARKWAY	SEVIERVILLE, TN 37876
	FOOD LION 886	329 COLLOREDO BLVD.	SHELBYVILLE, TN 37160
	KROGER 559	1010 NORTH MAINT ST.	SHELBYVILLE, TN 37160
	WALMART 656	1880 N. MAIN ST.	SHELBYVILLE, TN 37160
	PRUETTS SIGNAL MOUNTAIN MARKET	1210 TAFT HWY.	SIGNAL MTN., TN 37377
*	WALMART 4414	515 W BROAD ST.	SMITHVILLE, TN 37166
	ALDI 25	407 SOUTH LOWRY ST.	SMYRNA, TN 37167
	FOOD LION 1581	11459 OLD NASHVILLE HWY	SMYRNA, TN 37167
	KROGER 553	463 SAM RIDLEY PKWY WEST	SMYRNA, TN 37167
	PUBLIX 1016	661 PRESIDENT PLACE	SMYRNA, TN 37167
	PUBLIX 1238	1640 LEE VICTORY PARKWAY	SMYRNA, TN 37167
	WALMART 406	570 ENON SPRINGS RD. E	SMYRNA, TN 37167
	WALMART 477	9334 DAYTON PIKE	SODDY DAISY, TN 37379
	FOOD CITY 738	10161 DAYTON PIKE	SODDY-DAISY, TN 37379
	WALMART 587	202 SAM WALTON DR.	SPARTA, TN 38583
	ALDI 53	4917 MAIN STREET	SPRING HILL, TN 37174
	FOOD LION 1354	5341 MAIN ST.	SPRING HILL, TN 37174
	KROGER 594	4900 PORT ROYAL RD.	SPRING HILL, TN 37174
	PUBLIX 1047	4935 MAIN ST.:	SPRING HILL, TN 37174
	WALMART 3017	4959 MAIN ST.	SPRING HILL, TN 37174
*	ALDI 49	3438 TOM AUSTIN HWY	SPRINGFIELD, TN 37172
*	H.G HILL FOOD STORE 54	519 MEMORIAL BLVD.	SPRINGFIELD, TN 37172
	KROGER 575	2600 MEMORIAL BLVD.	SPRINGFIELD, TN 37172
	WALMART 304	3360 TOM AUSTIN HIGHWAY	SPRINGFIELD, TN 37172
	PRICE LESS FOODS 468	522 ANDREW JOHNSON HWY	STRAWBERRY PLAINS, TN 37871
	WALMART 4166	935 STATE HIGHWAY 11 S	SWEETWATER, TN 37874
	FOOD CITY 645	1410 N. BROAD ST.	TAZEWELL, TN 37879
	KROGER 588	4726 TRADERS WAY	THOMPSONS STATION, TN 37179
	ALDI 54	2014 N. JACKSON ST.	TULLAHOMA, TN 37388
	FOOD LION 1067	411 WEST LINCOLN ST	TULLAHOMA, TN 37388
	KROGER 561	1905 N JACKSON ST, STE	TULLAHOMA, TN 37388

	500	
WALMART 667	2111 N. JACKSON ST.	TULLAHOMA, TN 37388
WALMART 3852	110 ROCKY BOTTOM DR.	UNICOI, TN 37692
E.W. JAMES & SONS - UNION CITY	705, E. REELFOOT AVE.	UNION CITY, TN 38261
WALMART 675	1601 W. REELFOOT AVE	UNION CITY, TN 38261
FOOD CITY 620	2120 HIGHWAY 411	VONORE, TN 37885
WALMART 390	275 WALTON DRIVE	WAVERLY, TN 37185
KROGER 545	510 HIGHWAY 76	WHITE HOUSE, TN 37188
WALMART 4483	222 WILKINSON LN.	WHITE HOUSE, TN 37188
FOOD CITY 618	1212 STATE STREET	WHITE PINE, TN 37890
BATES FOODS	108 N. PORTER ST.	WINCHESTER, TN 37398
WALMART 735	2675 DECHERD BLVD	WINCHESTER, TN 37398

APPROVED FOR ENTRY UPON THE MINUTE BOOKS OF THE TENNESSEE ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE COMMISSION THIS THE 6th DAY OF APRIL, 2017

COMMISSIONER/

CLAYTON BYRD EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

ATTACHMENT TO FOLLOW

BEFORE THE TENNESSEE ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE COMMISSION

	RECEIVED
In Re:	
Metro Nashville Airport Authority,)	FFB 1 5 2017
Petitioner.	LED 1.2 53
)	TABC-NASHVILLE TN
)	

DECEMBED

PETITION FOR PROPOSED RULE TO BE SUBMITTED PURSUANT TO T.C.A. §4-5-205

The Petitioner, by and through legal counsel, petitions the Tennessee Alcoholic Beverage Commission ("TABC") to adopt the proposed amendment to Rule 0100-01 Rules for the Sale of Liquor by the Drink which is attached to this petition as Exhibit A (the "Proposed Rule"). The Proposed Rule is submitted pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 4-5-205 in lieu of a rulemaking hearing, unless a petition requesting such hearing is filed within thirty (30) days of the publication date of the issue in the Tennessee Administrative Register, in which proposed rules are published.

The Petitioner submits that the Proposed Rule is appropriate for adoption pursuant to T.C.A. §4-5-205 in lieu of a rulemaking hearing because its application is narrow in scope and relates solely to the terminal building of a commercial air carrier airport and concessionaires located in the terminal building.

REQUEST FOR RELIEF

For the reasons stated in the Proposed Rule and above, the Petitioner hereby requests that the TABC adopt the Proposed Rule for submission pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 4-5-205 in lieu of a rulemaking hearing.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED,

BONE MCALLESTER NORTON PLLC

William T. Cheek, III, #014787 Olatayo O. Atanda, #031007 511 Union Street, Suite 1600 Nashville, Tennessee 37219 (615) 238-6300 Counsel to the Petitioner

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on this 15 day of February, 2017, a true and correct copy of the foregoing Petition was sent by electronic mail and hand-delivery, to the following:

Clay Byrd, Esq.
Tennessee Alcoholic Beverage Commission
Davy Crockett Tower
500 James Roberson Parkway, 3rd floor
Nashville, Tennessee 37243

Joshua Stepp, Esq.
Tennessee Alcoholic Beverage Commission
Davy Crockett Tower
500 James Roberson Parkway, 3rd floor
Nashville, Tennessee 37243

Olatayo Atanda

Department of State Division of Publications

For Department of State Use Only

	•
312 8th Avenue North, 8th Floor Tennessee Tower	Sequence Number:
Nashville, TN 37243 Phone: 615-741-2650	Rule ID(s):
Fax: 615-741-5133	
Email: sos.information@state.tn.us	File Date:
	Effective Date:

Proposed Rule(s) Filing Form

Proposed rules are submitted pursuant to T.C.A. §4-5-205 in lieu of a rulemaking hearing. It is the intent of the Agency to promulgate these rules without a rulemaking hearing unless a petition requesting such hearing is filed within thirty (30) days of the publication date of the issue of the Tennessee Administrative Register in which the proposed rules are published. To be effective, the petition must be filed with the Agency and be signed by twenty-five (25) persons who will be affected by the amendments, or submitted by a municipality which will be affected by the amendments, or an association of twenty-five (25) or more members, or any standing committee of the General Assembly.

Agency/Board Division:	Alcoholic Beverage Commission
Contact	Clayton Byrd, Esq.
Address:	500 James Robertson Parkway Nashville, TN
Zip:	37243
Phone: Email:	(615) 741-1602

Revision Type (check all that apply):

X Amendment

New

Repeal

Rule(s) Revised (for additional chapters, copy and paste table)

Chapter Number	Chapter Title	
0100-01.	Rules for the Sale of Liquor by the Drink	
Rule Number	Rule Title	
0100-0103	Conduct of Business	



Rule 0100-01-.03 Consumption on Licensed Premises, paragraph (2) is amended by deleting the present language in its entirety and replacing it with the following:

Chapter 0100--01-.03(2) Conduct of Business

Amendments

(2) Consumption on Licensed Premises.

Except as provided for in 100--01-.08 below, no licensee shall permit alcoholic or malt beverages to be consumed and/or sold on the licensed premises between the hours of 3 a.m. and 8 a.m. on Monday through Saturday or between the hours of 3 a.m. and 10 a.m. on Sunday unless the local jurisdiction has opted out of the expanded hours. If such is the case, then the consumption and/or sale of alcoholic beverages may begin at 12 noon on Sunday.

Rule 0100-01 Rules for the Sale of Liquor by the Drink is amended by adding the following as a new separate section:

Chapter 0100--01-,08 Terminal Building of a Commercial Air Carrier

- (1) Hours of Sale. Notwithstanding subsection 0100--01-.03(2), any establishment that holds a license as a terminal building of a commercial air carrier airport under Tenn. Code Ann. §57-4-102(36), any establishment that holds a license as a commercial airline travel club under Tenn. Code Ann. §57-4-102(10), or a concessionaire that holds a liquor-by-the-drink license and is located in a terminal building of a commercial air carrier airport, shall be permitted to allow alcoholic or malt beverages to be consumed and/or sold on the licensed premises during the hours that the terminal building of the commercial carrier airport is open to the public.
- (2) Privilege Tax. Establishment, as the term is used in Tenn. Code Ann. § 57-4-301(b)(1)(L), shall mean the license holder. Only one license fee or privilege tax shall be due from each holder of a license for a terminal building of a commercial air carrier airport.

(3) Establishment.

- (a) A terminal building of a commercial air carrier airport license may be issued either to the entity in contol of the airport or, at its own discretion, to another entity or entities as are contractually permitted to operate within the airport. All such entities shall be considered an Establishment for purposes of Tenn. Code Ann. §57-4-301(b)(1)(L) and shall file an annual report with each renewal identifying each point of sale within the airport.
- (b) The holder of a license for a terminal building of a commercial air carrier airport may contractually authorize a separate entity to operate under the

terminal building of a commercial air carrier airport license, and such contractually authorized entity shall not be required to obtain its own license.

(4) Enforcement. The commission may, in its discretion, treat each point of sale at the terminal building of a commercial air carrier separately for enforcement purposes.

If a roll-call vote was necessary, the vote by the Agency on these rulemaking hearing rules was as follows:

Board Member	Aye	No	Abstain	Absent	Signature (i required)
(If applicable)					required
	lawfully pro (board/comicompliance hereby instricted under treat the pro- expiration of Tennessee A	omulgated and mission/other an with the provisucted that, in the the conditions seeposed rules as of thirty (30) date deministrative Research	rate and complete copadopted by the	as mm/dd/yyyy 22. The Secreta in for rulemaking the locations desc in his office a tion date of the proposed rules are	(If applicable)), and is in ary of State is the hearing being cribed, he is to as rules at the e issue of the
	Signature:				
	Title of Office	er:			
	Subscribed as	nd sworn to befor	re me on:		

Notary Public Signature: _____

My commission expires on:	. v
All proposed rules provided for herein have been exami the State of Tennessee and are approved as to le Administrative Procedures Act, Tennessee Code Annotate	egality pursuant to the provisions of the
	Robert E. Cooper, Jr.
	Attorney General
	Date
Department of State Use Only	
Filed with the Department of State on:	
Effective on:	
	Secretary of State

Additional Information Required

All agencies, upon filing a rule, must also submit the following pursuant to TCA 4-5-226(i)(1).

(A) A brief summary of the rule and a description of all relevant changes in previous regulations effectuated by such rule;

The amendment will allow the terminal building of a commercial air carrier airport and concessionaires located in the terminal building of commercial air carrier airport to allow consumption and/or sale of alcoholic or malt beverages during the hours that such terminal building is is open to the public. Under the current rule, the consumption and/or sale of alcohol or malt beverages at a terminal building of a commercial air carrier airport is not allowed between the hours of three o'clock a.m. (3:00 a.m.) and eight o'clock a.m (8:00 a.m.) on Monday through Saturday or between the hours of three o'clock a.m. (3:00 a.m.) and ten o'clock a.m (10:00 a.m.) on Sundays. The proposed rule will expand the hours of sale.

(B) A citation to and brief description of any federal law or regulation or any state law or regulation mandating promulgation of such rule or establishing guidelines relevant thereto;

Tenn. Code Ann. § 57-4-203(d)(5) allows the Tennessee Alcoholic Beverage Commission to expand the hours of sale for establishments located in the jurisdictions which have approved the sale of liquor by the drink. The modification is subject to the procedural requirements of a petition and hearing as described in the statute.

(C) Identification of persons, organizations, corporations or governmental entities most directly affected by this rule, and whether those persons, organizations, corporations or governmental entities urge adoption or rejection of this rule;

The following

- 1. A terminal building of a commercial air carrier airport license by the TABC.
- A commercial airline travel club licensed by the TABC.
- 3. An establishment or a concessionaire that holds a liquor-by-the-drink license which is located inside of a terminal building of a commercial air carrier.
- (D) Identification of any opinions of the attorney general and reporter or any judicial ruling that directly relates to the rule;

None.

(E) An estimate of the probable increase or decrease in state and local government revenues and expenditures, if any, resulting from the promulgation of this rule, and assumptions and reasoning upon which the estimate is based. An agency shall not state that the fiscal impact is minimal if the fiscal impact is more than two percent (2%) of the agency's annual budget or five hundred thousand dollars (\$500,000), whichever is less;

Extended hours of sale at the terminal building of a commercial air carrier airport will generate increased tax revenue for both the State of Tennessee and affected local governments.

Extended hours of sale will allow commercial air career airports and concessionaires located inside commercial air career airports to increase volumes of sale, thereby increasing revenue. Increased

revenue would also allow airports like the Metropolitan Nashville Airport Authority —which takes a business-style approach to management—to improve their facilities without raising taxes or fees.

The following is a conservative analysis of the increased revenue expected from expanded hours of sale at the Nashville Metropolitan Airport, alone:

Alcohol at BNA	e Hour Restrictions of	
% of Alcohol Sale concessionaires)	s by Type at BNA (per	
54.08%	Beer	
14.49%	Wine	
31.43%	Liquor	
Alcohol Sales at November 16)	BNA (November 15 -	
\$9,397,015	Total	
\$5,081,928	Beer	
\$1,361,476	Wine	
\$2,953,611	Liquor	
\$1,436,552	er 15 – November 16)	
Analysis		
27.20%	Total # of seats filled in the hours prior to allowable service of wine/liquor	
72.80%	Seats during service hours	
72.80%	of time equates to	
\$4,315,087	in sales (wine + liquor)	
27.20%	would equate to	
\$2,024,318	Projected Sales (wine + liquor)	
\$306,648 Projected Revenue to Airport		

In total, the Airport could anticipate more than two million dollars in additional sales from expanded hours. This increase in sales would result in \$306,648 in additional projected revenue to the Airport.

Additional projected yearly Tax Revenue for the State and Local Government? (wine + liquor)

State's Sales Tax Revenue: \$77,538.58 City & County Tax Revenue: \$24,923.12 Liquor-by-the-Drink Tax Revenue: \$166,154.10

Total: \$268,615.80

Based on this estimate, it is expected that other commercial air carrier airports in Tennessee, such as the Memphis International Airport and McGhee Tyson Airport, will experience similar increase in sales.

(F) Identification of the appropriate agency representative or representatives, possessing substantial knowledge and understanding of the rule;

Clayton Byrd

(G) Identification of the appropriate agency representative or representatives who will explain the rule at a scheduled meeting of the committees;

Clayton Byrd

(H) Office address and telephone number of the agency representative or representatives who will explain the rule at a scheduled meeting of the committees; and

Clayton Byrd
Tennessee Alcoholic Beverage Commission
Davy Crockett Tower, 3rd Floor
500 James Robertson Parkway, Nashville, TN 37243
Phone No. 615-741-1602

(I) Any additional information relevant to the rule proposed for continuation that the committee requests.

In addition to increasing tax revenues, the proposed rule will allow commercial air carrier airports in Tennessee to better compete with commercial air carrier airports in contiguous states and commercial carrier airports in top 25 cities for convention business in the United States. The attached excel spreadsheet contains the hours of alcohol sales at commercial air carrier airports located in contiguous states and top 25 convention business cities.